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Fran Kelly:  The Treasurer there yesterday on the program ruling out an open tender process for the 
next class of submarines for the Australian Navy.  But importantly as a qualification around this morning 
saying that the Government isn’t necessarily excluding some kind of limited tender.  Would that satisfy 
you? 
 
Innes Willox:  Well the Defence Minster yesterday indicated that the Government would go through a 
normal two part process which is the normal process around major defence acquisitions and we take 
some comfort from that.  The issue that is at play here is that this is an issue that goes to Australia’s 
strategic capabilities long term and this would be a practical legacy of the current Government and we 
are just urging that they get it right and the Chief of Navy has said that he doesn’t need operational 
submarines until 2027.  We believe all the evidence that has been put before us is that this gives us 
plenty of time to have a one year project definition study to look at the scope of what is needed to meet 
our strategic needs.  How we are able to service those submarines through life.  What the best options 
are and then go into the process of buying and then building those submarines.  The reality is Fran even 
if an overseas option is chosen there still needs to be a lot of work done in Australia and Australian 
industry needs to be front and centre of that to make sure we get this right. 
 
Fran Kelly:  Just to clarify though because key to strategic capability is that we have a submarine, as the 
Treasurer said that there is no gap.  Now you say you believe that there is ample time to build a new 
submarine but that is a question an Admiral is qualified to answer isn’t it rather than a business leader? 
 
Innes Willox:  Well I am just quoting the Chief of Navy, Tim Barrett, who told a Parliamentary Committee 
recently that we would only need to get a new submarine with capability by around 2027 so that is still a 
fair way away and it gives us a long time to get this right.  So there is no need to rush, there is no need 
to rule anything in or out at this stage.  I know that defence officials are spending a lot of time up in 
Japan at the moment looking at that option and that is reasonable but there are other options, Japanese, 
European and local that need to be considered and this is about our strategic capability.  It is not about 
anything else, it is about our strategic capability.  Australian submarines are different in many ways, they 
operate far from home and in warm water climates and if we are to play a strategic role properly going 
into the future we need to get this right. 
 
Fran Kelly:  The Ai Group represents a number of defence industries presumably with interest in building 
the next fleet of submarines.  Should the contract be awarded locally do you believe and are you told 
that the Australian submarine industry corporation has the capacity to build a good enough submarine, 
better than good enough?  An excellent submarine? 
 
Innes Willox:  Well the companies we represent, major defence companies would also play a role if the 
decision was made to build overseas and then sustain the submarines locally.  So, it is not really an 
issue, it shouldn’t be boiled down to local or overseas it is just about getting the right model.  And our 
concern is the concern of many within the industry, is that the Government needs to get the right process 
in place so that it can properly evaluate all the options.  Saying that we don’t have time, we don’t believe 
that is quite right. There is time for a reasonable evaluation to be made through a project definition study 
which will look at the key issues that we need to address to get this right.  Our concern and the concern 
of those in the industry isn’t about whether it is built locally or internationally as much as we get this right, 
and as I keep saying, it is about our strategic capability, it is not about anything else at the moment. 
 



Fran Kelly:  You are listening to RN Breakfast.  Innes Willox is the Chief Executive of the Australian 
Industry Group.  There were suggestions to us from both the Greens and the Independent Senator for 
South Australia, Nick Xenophon, who is very exercised by this issue as you can imagine because the 
ASC is based in Adelaide.  Suggestion that they believe that the Government has done a deal with 
Japan as part of the Free Trade Agreement this year, that has basically indicated or signalled it will give 
the submarine contract to Japan.  Do you know anything of that? Do you think that is likely? 
 
Innes Willox:  Well, what has happened is that the Government has made an agreement with Japan to 
share information around technology, part of which goes into submarines, so we are looking at 
propulsion and sonar capability.  There hasn’t been any decision made about whether to pick up the 
Japanese submarine and build it there and then deliver it to Australia and then any decisions about what 
happens beyond that. 
 
Fran Kelly:  So you don’t think that it has been sort of tacitly agreed as part of the FTA? 
 
Innes Willox:  All I can say to you is that there has been an agreement made around technology and that 
defence officials are spending a lot of time up in Japan based around that and then looking at the longer 
term Japanese option of the Japanese craft, as they should.  That is an option that is under 
consideration.  Our point is that there are also other options that need to be properly evaluated and ruled 
in or out.  One option that hasn’t sort of been thrown on the table yet is the nuclear submarine option.  
That should be examined as well.  There are a whole range of options that the Government could look at 
here and should look at. 
 
Fran Kelly:  So just finally, just to be clear here.  What the Treasurer on this program ruled out yesterday 
was the demand by the Senate for an open tender for the next range of submarines.  The Treasurer 
indicated, well the indication is, is not necessarily ruling out a qualified or limited tender process.  From 
your view the right terminology here and what the industry would like when you say time is available for 
a project definition study of a number of options.  Is that an open tender that we are talking about? 
 
Innes Willox:  That is an evaluation which is a process which will then lead to everyone being aware 
what is needed by Australia to meet our strategic needs. 
 
Fran Kelly:  And then could go to limited tender?  Would you be happy with that? 
 
Innes Willox:  Well then it could go to a tender process. 
 
Fran Kelly:  Limited or open? 
 
Innes Willox:  Well then it is up to Government about how they want to tender it.  But I think the first step 
that everyone in the industry is looking for is for the Government to put some definition around exactly 
what they need and then everyone will have clear line of sight about what they need to do if there is to 
be a tender process be it open or limited. 
 
Fran Kelly:  Innes Willox thank you very much for joining us. 
 
Innes Willox:  Thanks Fran. 
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